
AGENDA 
 

CANFIELD CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING 

     September 17, 2025-5:30 P.M. 
 

FRANCIS J. McLAUGHLIN MUNICIPAL BUILDING 
 
 
1. Call to Order. 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
3. Roll Call:  Quorum is Present - Meeting is in Session. 
 
4. Proclamations & Presentations.   
      
5. Approval of Minutes. 
 
6. Reading of Communications. 
 
7. Reports of Committees, Boards, Mayor’s Report, City Manager, Finance Director, Chief of Police, 

Zoning Inspector and Public Works Superintendent. 
 
8. Public questions from residents (or representative) related to the above referenced reports. Questions 

may be limited to three (3) minutes. 
 
9. Recognition of Persons Desiring to Appear Before Council. 
 
10.  OLD BUSINESS 
  Note: After each item is placed on the table for action, public comments from residents (or 

representative) as to that business item are received.  May be limited to three (3) minutes per person 
and thirty (30) minutes total. 

 
 
11. NEW BUSINESS 

Note: After each item is placed on the table for action, public comments from residents (or 
representative) as to that business item are received.  May be limited to three (3) minutes per person 
and thirty (30) minutes total. 

 
 

A. An Ordinance to Approve and Adopt the Current Replacement Pages to the 

Codified Ordinances. 

 

Description:  
During the course of the year as new ordinances are passed and current 
ordinances are amended, we must update our codified ordinance books 
as well as the online codification of our ordinances. These updates also 
include changes from the State.  

 
This item approves and adopts the replacement pages required for the updates to 

our codified ordinances and authorizes American Legal Publishing to prepare 

said updates 

 

Action Needed: Passage of this Ordinance. 

 

Attachment(s): None 

 

B. A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager of the City of Canfield to Apply for, 

Accept, and Enter Into A Water Supply Revolving Loan Account (WSRLA) 

Agreement for Design of the C.H. Campbell Elementary Water Service 

Improvement Project and Designating A Dedicated Repayment Source for the 

Loan and Declaring an Emergency.   



Description:  See City Manager/John Rapp 

 

Action Needed: 

 

Attachment(s):   

 

C. A Motion Setting the Date and Time for Trick-or-Treat in the City of Canfield 

for 2025 

 

Description: This Motion sets the official time for Trick or Treat in the City of 

Canfield. Trick or Treat will be on October 31, 2025 (Friday) from 5:30pm to 

7:30pm. After checking with surrounding communities, we are coordinating our 

hours and Trick or Treat will be 10-31-25 from 5:30 to 7:30pm.  

  

Action Needed: Approval of this Motion 

 

Attachment(s): None.  

 

  Public Comments 

 

12. Council Comments 

 

13. Adjournment 

 

 

 

 



Introduced By: ________________ 
First Reading: _________________ 
 

ORDINANCE 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO APPROVE AND ADOPT 
THE CURRENT REPLACEMENT PAGES  

TO THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES. 
 

 WHEREAS, certain provisions within the Codified Ordinances should be amended to 
Conform with current State law as required by the Ohio Constitution; and 
 
 WHEREAS, various ordinances of a general and permanent nature have been passed 
by Council which should be included in the Codified Ordinances; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Council has entered into a contract with the Walter H. Drane Company to 
prepare such annual revision which is presently before Council; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF CANFIELD, OHIO: 
 
 Section1: That the Ordinances of the Municipality of Canfield, Ohio, of a general and 
permanent nature, as revised, recodified, rearranged and consolidated into component 
codes, titles, chapters and sections within the 2025 Replacement Pages to the Codified 
Ordinances are hereby approved and adopted.  
 
 Section 2:  That the following sections and chapters are hereby added, amended or 
repealed as respectively indicated in order to comply with current State Law: 
 

Traffic Code 

303.01 Compliance with Lawful Order of Police Officer; Fleeing (Amended) 

331.381 School Bus Operator to Report Violations. (Added) 
331.39 Driving Across Grade Crossing. (Amended) 

331.40 Stopping at Grade Crossing. (Amended) 

331.401 Slow-Moving Vehicles or Equipment Crossing Railroad Tracks. (Added) 

333.07 Street Racing, Stunt Driving and Street Takeovers Prohibited. (Amended) 

333.11 Electronic Wireless Communication Device Use Prohibited While Driving 
(Amended) 

335.04 Certain Acts Prohibited. (Amended) 

335.072 Driving Under Financial Responsibility Law Suspension or 
Cancellation; Driving Under a Nonpayment of Judgment Suspension. 
(Amended) 

335.074 Driving Under License Forfeiture or Child Support Suspension. (Amended) 

337.26 Child Restraint System Usage. (Amended) 

  

  

 General Offenses Code 

513.01 Drug Abuse Control Definitions. (Amended) 

513.02 Gift of Marihuana. (Amended) 

513.03 Drug Abuse; Controlled Substance Possession or Use. (Amended) 

513.04 Possessing Drug Abuse Instruments. (Amended) 

513.05 Permitting Drug Abuse. (Amended) 

513.07 Possessing or Using Harmful Intoxicants. (Amended) 



513.08 Illegally Dispensing Drug Samples. (Amended) 

513.12 Drug Paraphernalia. (Amended) 

513.17 Pseudoephedrine Sales. (Added) 

525.05 Failure to Report a Crime, Injury or Knowledge of Death. (Amended) 

533.01 Obscenity and Sex Offenses Definitions. (Amended) 

533.03 Unlawful Sexual Conduct with a Minor. (Amended) 

533.04 Sexual Imposition. (Amended) 

533.16 Grooming. (Added) 

537.02 Vehicular Homicide and Manslaughter. (Amended) 

537.021 Vehicular Assault in a Construction Zone. (Amended) 

537.03 Assault. (Amended) 

537.14 Domestic Violence. (Amended) 

537.16 Illegal Distribution of Cigarettes, Other Tobacco Products, or Alternative 
Nicotine Products; Transaction Scans. (Amended) 

537.20 Illegal Use of a Tracking Device or Application. (Added) 

545.01 Theft and Fraud Definitions. (Amended) 

545.05 Misdemeanor Theft. (Amended) 

549.10 Possessing Replica Firearm in School. (Amended) 

549.12 Concealed Handgun Licenses; Possession of Revoked or Suspended License; 
Additional Restrictions; Posting Signs Prohibiting Possession. (Amended) 

 
 
 Section 3: That this Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon approval of a 
majority vote of the members of Council and the Clerk of Council shall cause notice of the 
adoption of the current Replacement Pages to be published as provided in Section 4.15 of 
the Charter.  The provision of Section 4.15 of the Charter pertaining to the codification of 
ordinances shall be applicable to the current service supplementing such codification. 
 
 Section 4:  That this Ordinance and all deliberations relating to the passage of this 
Ordinance were held in open meetings of this Council, all pursuant to Section 121.22 of the 
Ohio Revised Code and Section 3.11 of the Charter of the Municipality of Canfield. 
 
PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS ________DAY OF ______________A.D. 2025. 
 
 
       ______________________ 
       PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________ 
CLERK OF COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 
     Certification of Publication 
 
 I, the undersigned Clerk of Council of the City of Canfield, Ohio, hereby certify that the 
foregoing Ordinance was posted in a prominent place at the Municipal Building, Canfield, Ohio for 
seven continuous days, to wit: 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________. 



        ___________________ 
        CLERK OF COUNCIL 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
______________________ 
MUNICIPAL ATTORNEY 
 

 

 



  
 
Introduced by: ____________ 
First Reading: ____________ 
  

CITY OF CANFIELD 
 RESOLUTION 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER OF THE CITY OF CANFIELD 
TO APPLY FOR, ACCEPT, AND ENTER INTO A WATER SUPPLY REVOLVING LOAN 
ACCOUNT (WSRLA) AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN OF THE C.H. CAMPBELL 
ELEMENTARY WATER SERVICE IMPROVEMENT PROJECT AND DESIGNATING A 
DEDICATED REPAYMENT SOURCE FOR THE LOAN AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY.  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Canfield is seeking to update existing water distribution 
facilities near CH Campbell Elementary School to increase system reliability and operational 
efficiency. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Canfield intends to apply for Water Supply Revolving 

Loan Account (WSRLA) funding for the design of the water improvements; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Ohio Water Supply Revolving Loan Account (WSRLA) 

requires the government authority to pass legislation for application of a loan and the execution 
of an agreement as well as designating a dedicated repayment source;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Council of the City of 
Canfield, Mahoning County, Ohio: 
 

Section 1: That the City Manager is hereby authorized to apply for a 
WSRLA loan, sign all documents for, and enter into a Water Supply Revolving Loan Account 
(WSRLA) agreement with the Ohio Environmental Protection Agency and the Ohio Water 
Development Authority for design of water facilities on behalf of the City of Canfield, Ohio.  

 
Section 2: That the dedicated source of repayment will be Water Operating 

Fund.. 
 

Section 3: This Resolution is hereby declared to be an emergency measure 
necessary for the preservation of public peace, health, and safety of the inhabitants of the City 
of Canfield, Ohio. Said emergency exists by reason of the fact that the loan application is due 
by October 15, 2025.  
 

Section 4: That this Resolution and all deliberations relating to the passage 
of this Resolution were held in open meetings of this Council, all pursuant to Section 121.22 of 
the Ohio Revised Code and Section 3.11 of the Charter of the Municipality of Canfield. 

 
 

PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS                                      DAY OF ___________________, 2025. 
 
 
     ______________________________ 
     PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________ 
CLERK OF COUNCIL  
 

 



 
 
 
 

Certification of Publication 
 

I, the undersigned Clerk of Council of the City of Canfield, Ohio, hereby certify that the 
foregoing Resolution was posted in a prominent place at the Municipal Building, Canfield, 
Ohio for seven continuous days, to wit: __________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________. 
 
      ________________________ 
      CLERK OF COUNCIL  
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_____________________________ 
MUNICIPAL ATTORNEY 



Introduced By: _________________    Motion No.______________ 
 

MOTION 
 

A Motion Setting the Date and Time for 
 Trick-or-Treat in the City of Canfield for 2025 

 
 WHEREAS, Council deems it desirable to set the hours of Trick-or-Treat  
For the City of Canfield for the year 2025; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT KNOWN BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CANFIELD, OHIO: 
 
 Section 1:  The hours of Trick-or-Treat shall be held from 5:30 P.M. to 7:30 P.M. on 
Friday, October 31, 2025 
 
 Section 2:  That this Motion and all deliberations relating to the passage of this Motion 
were held in open meetings of this Council all pursuant to Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised 
Code and Section 3.11 of the Charter of the Municipality of Canfield. 
 
PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS _________DAY OF _________________________A.D., 2025. 
 
 
        
        ________________________ 
        CLERK OF COUNCIL 
 

Certification of Publication 
 

 I, the undersigned Clerk of Council of the City of Canfield, Ohio, hereby certify that the 
foregoing Motion was posted in a prominent place at the Municipal Building, Canfield, Ohio for 
seven continuous days, to-wit:__________________________________________________ 
 
__________________________________________________________________________. 
 
        ___________________________ 
        CLERK OF COUNCIL 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
___________________________ 
MUNICIPAL ATTORNEY 
 

 



1 
 

MINUTES 
CANFIELD CITY COUNCIL 

PUBLIC HEARING  
SEPTEMBER 3, 2025- 5:30 P.M. 

 
 The Public Hearing was called to order by Christine Oliver, President of Council, followed 
by the Pledge of Allegiance. The Clerk called the roll to which a quorum responded as follows:  
Mr. Dragish, Mr. Graham, Mr. Neff, Mrs. Oliver and Mr. Tieche.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: This is a public hearing regarding: 
 
  An Ordinance Amending the Sign Regulations of the City of Canfield.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: Atty. Fortunato. Do you need to say anything regarding the public hearing before 
we open up the regular meeting? 
 
ATTY. FORTUNATO:  We made a change based on an incident that occurred.  We’ve added the 
following to 1183.99. Notwithstanding the above, in the case of a violation of these Sign 
Regulations related to Temporary Sign(s), the Zoning Inspector shall place a door hanger at the 
subject property informing the owner or occupant of the specific violation.  If the subject sign is 
not removed within three (3) business days, the property owner shall be cited for the violation 
and subject to fines described hereinabove.   
 
So, we modified the process of just going and taking the sign. We place a doorhanger and 
provide a notice that the sign in not in compliance with our regulations. We’re giving them 3 
days to remove it or they’ll be cited into Mayor’s Court.  The staff worked hard on a couple of 
different versions of this.  We ended up with this language and we’re pretty satisfied with it.  
 
MR. TIECHE: This is the outcome of this amendment. Is that correct? 
 
ATTY. FORTUNATO: That is what the amendment will say.  
 
MR. TIECHE:  Currently, the amendment says that they can remove the sign.   
 
ATTY. FORTUNATO: That is how we were enforcing our ordinance.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: Here is my question. After the 3 days, and they haven’t removed it, are you going 
on people’s property and removing it or are you just going cite them? 
 
ATTY. FORTUNATO: Just going to cite them.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: Okay. Good.   
 



2 
 

ATTY. FORTUNATO: Up to $100/per day.  The only reason that we’re going on the property is to 
place a courtesy door hanger, rather than citing them. We could cite them but we’re giving 
them the opportunity to remove the sign.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: Okay.  Thank you for clarifying that.  Any questions from the public?  
 
JOHN MORVAY: John Morvay, 7 Willow Way. Is that the only amendment to this? 
 
ATTY. FORTUNATO: Yes. The only change.   
 
MR. MORVAY: Sometimes, I don’t go to my front porch. Would a letter be more appropriate?   
 
ATTY. FORTUNATO: I think most people would see, it’s a colored door hanger. When you pull in 
your driveway, I think you could see that.   
 
MR. D’APOLITO: It’s a very bright yellow. We specifically went with this color. It’s hard to miss. 
A letter would take too long to get it there. If we sent it certified mail…   It’s a violation 
immediately, we’re just giving you a courtesy. Giving you a warning.   
 
ATTY. FORTUNATO: If they ended up cited into Mayor’s Court and they called Tyler and said 
they removed it, after they’ve been cited, and Tyler confirms that it has been removed, I’m 
going to recommend dismissal to the Mayor. The worst-case scenario is if they don’t comply at 
all.  They thumb their nose. Then they’re going to end up in front of the Mayor.   
 
MR. MORVAY: I’m just thinking of my own self. I go through the garage and I don’t even go 
through the front door.  But I do open the mail every day.  If we have a problem, we can amend 
it again.  
 
ATTY. FORTUNATO: Sure.   
 
UNIDENTIFIED MAN: What kind of signs are we talking about? 
 
MRS. OLIVER: If somebody is doing roof repairs on your home.  They stick their sign in the yard 
announcing the name of their company. They have it there while the roof repairs are being 
done.  It’s supposed to be removed after the repairs are done. It’s not supposed to stay there 
like it’s advertising for the company.   
 
ATTY. FORTUNATO: Well put.   
 
MRS. OLIVER: I figured that was the easiest way to explain it.  
 
ATTY. FORTUNATO: Good job. I’ll let you take it from here.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: Any questions? Hearing none.  I’m going to close the Public Hearing.  



3 
 

 
      _______________________________ 
      PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL 
 
 
ATTEST; 
 
 
______________________ 
CLERK OF COUNCIL  



1 
 

MINUTES 
CANFIELD CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMEBER 3, 2025-5:40 P.M. 

 
 The meeting was called to order by Christine Oliver, President of Council, followed by the Pledge 
of Allegiance. The Clerk called the roll to which a quorum responded as follows:  Mr. Dragish, Mr. 
Graham, Mr. Neff, Mrs. Oliver and Mr. Tieche.  
 
Staff present: Christine Stack-Clayton, Finance Director; Charles Colucci, Chief of Police, John Rapp, 
Public Works Superintendent and Tyler Thorn, Zoning Inspector.   
 
  Under PRESENTATIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS, there were none.  
 
  Under MINUTES, the Minutes of the Regular Meeting on August 13, 2025 were 
approved as presented.  
 
  Under READING OF COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
MRS. OLIVER: The only thing I have to say is to commend our city and our city manager. I’ve had people 
come up to me telling me about the wonderful events we’ve been having on the Green and how nice 
they’ve all been for their families.  Everybody is excited about them. I’ve been to events and they’re well 
attended.  People have been complimenting that and I want to make sure I pass that along.  Normally, 
you hear the negative things and I think you should hear the positive as well.  Thank you, very much for 
everything you do for our city.  That’s all I have.  
 
  Under REPORTS of Committees, Boards, Mayor’s Report, City Manager, Finance 
Director, Chief of Police, Zoning Inspector and Public Works Superintendent.  
 
PUBLIC WORKS SUPERINTENDENT: Good evening. Public Works has been busy flushing fire hydrants. If 
there are any low-pressure complaints or discolored water, the reason is the hydrant flushing and flow 
test being performed for the month of September. Also, you’ll see crews out valve exercising the water 
valves; which is mandated by the EPA.  We had one water break. We just repaired on Wadsworth and 
we’re going to schedule another repair pretty soon.  It’s a minor leak. That’s all I have.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: Thank you. Our Finance Director, Mrs. Clayton.  
 
FINANCE DIRECTOR: On the agenda tonight is a Resolution to accept the Amounts and Rates for real 
estate collection for next year.  I left the allocation the same as this current year with 1Mill going to the 
General Fund and 2Mills going to the Street CM&R Fund.  Also, another Resolution for the parcels to be 
assessed for street lights. Those amount were set by Ordinances in prior years. But we have to have a 
Resolution giving the whole list to the county auditor to put on the real estate tax bills next year.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: Thank you. Our Zoning Inspector, Mr. Thorn.  
 
ZONING INSPECTOR:  Thank you, Mrs. Oliver. For the month of August, we issued 21 permits that were 
valued at $763,018.  Total permits issued year to date is 123 permits.  Year to date, permits are valued 
at $19,946,371.04. That’s all I have.  



2 
 

 
MRS. OLIVER: Thank you.  I’m going to go to Mr. Tieche.  
 
MR. TIECHE:  Parks, Recreation & Cemetery Board had a meeting this morning.  I don’t think the minutes 
were done yet because the Clerk was not here. I don’t know if you’ve even got the minutes.   
 
CLERK: No, I have not. 
 
MR. TIECHE: So, you will be getting those.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: Thank you. Mr. Neff. 
 
MR. NEFF:  Planning & Zoning did not meet. We’re meeting next week.  So, nothing to report.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: Thank you. Mayor Dragish.  
 
MR. DRAGISH: I have the large Mayor’s Monthly Statement.  We had net collections to the city of 
$10.00. 
 
MRS. OLIVER: What happened to our penny?  
 
MR. DRAGISH: The penny is not in there today.   
 
FINANCE DIRECTOR: Not enough money for interest.   
 
MRS. OLIVER: That’s a first, $10.00. I’m like, where is the penny.   Mr. Graham.  
 
MR. GRAHAM: The Design Review Committee met last evening. A couple of items were approved.  
Related to the historic district, 40 Court Street a new fence and some work on the Presbyterian Church.  
There was one demolition permit issued for 300 N. Broad Street and no action taken on some other 
matters that were presented regarding a demolition. 
 
MRS. OLIVER: For the Fire Board, total calls, this is our August report for July, there were 273, we had no 
fire losses and ambulance transports was 135, we gave 9 mutual aid and we received 6.    Our Clerk, Mrs. 
Bernat. 
 
CLERK: No report.  
 
MR. D’APOLITO: Thank you, Mrs. Oliver.  On August 14th, the Canfield Police Department conducted an 
active shooter drill at Canfield High School with teachers and school personnel present, from all the 
school buildings. I just wanted to say, what a fabulous job they did. You don’t realize, Mr. Neff was there 
as well, you don’t realize until you hear those shots, they were blanks and we knew they were blanks 
but you hear those shots ringing out in the school building, it really does affect you.  The way the police 
department conducted it, it was impressive.  I wanted to highlight that.   
 
Also, on the 14th of August, Family Fun Night, it was a huge success.  It was well attended. We had a 
great crowd and great music provided by Back Beat, great food provided by Thai it up and Roxbury Pizza.  
There was a petting zoo. I did want to recognize our events coordinator, Hailey Arroyo for doing such a 



3 
 

great job on that event. I wanted to make sure that everyone knows we have Fall Fest, the last one of 
the season on October 4th at 4:00 pm.  That’s where we have the pumpkins.  It’s a really great event as 
well.  If everyone wants to mark their calendar for that.  I want to recognize Public Works, We had two 
pretty major water breaks August 18th one on Blueberry Hill and another one on the 25th on Village Blvd.  
On the 18th, the crews were out there until after midnight.  Everyone works so well.  On Friday of this 
week, we’re going to be having Reclamite a new product that the city is trying out to put on our recently 
paved roads. This product claims it can restore the cohesiveness of the pavement and give us another 5 
years out of that road without having to repave it.  It’s a relatively inexpensive product.  We are giving it 
a trail on Manor Hill on Friday. I’m really excited to see how that turns out.   
 
The other big news is the Pickleball Courts are reopened.  They’ve been resurfaced.  They are different 
colors. I’m trying to go with Canfield colors. The company suggested to not go red and black.  The black 
is very hot in the summer.  It’s a darkish gray. Take a look at those. I think they’re pretty well received so 
far.   
 
Finally, the last thing I want to talk about is the MSC situation continues on. There was an interesting 
article in paper over the weekend. The company is here for the long-haul. They are complying. There 
have been some technical things with the EPA, but they are complying.  So, that goes on.   
 
MRS. OLIVER: We have two events coming up in September on our Green.  
 
MR. D’APOLITO: We do.  We have the Junior Women’s League event and on the 27th we have Back the 
Blue Ohio.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: We’re raising money for Officer Phillip Wagner’s family. They have 3 children under the 
age of 5 and lost their father. So, we have two events coming up on the Green. Hopefully, you will come 
out and attend them.  Our Police Chief, Chief Colucci. 
 
CHIEF OF POLICE:  I think there is another event.  So, September 14th is the Melina Michelle Edenfield 
event.  
 
CLERK: They canceled.   
 
MRS. OLIVER: That’s at the high school.  I saw that today. It’s a wonderful event.   
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: Thank you. It’s been a busy last week for us with the Fair.  I’m sure that most of you 
were aware that attendance was up.  We don’t do any type of policing enforcement within the 
Fairgrounds but we certainly have our share of responsibility outside and around.  How they work it 
typically is the Mahoning County Sheriff’s Department and the Canfield Fair Police inside the 
Fairgrounds. Outside of the Fairgrounds, sometimes the highway patrol will help us out. They were out 
this year. The Mahoning County Sheriff’s Department and Canfield Police took on all the responsibilities.  
What that meant for us is, our officers had a lot more work to take care of. They worked the 
intersections of 224 and Fairground Blvd and Fairground and 46 and 446 and 46 at times and 62 and 
446.  I want to thank the Sheriff’s Department for asking us to be a part of it.  I want to thank both the 
deputies and all the Canfield officers who did an amazing job. I was able to get out and drive around to 
make sure that they didn’t need anything.  They were on top of it. They did a heck of a job.  There was a 
lot of traffic coming into the city and around the city.  One of our goals always is to keep traffic out of 
the city as much as we can.  At night, we always shut down northbound traffic into the city at 



4 
 

Fairgrounds where the highway patrol is, we divert all the traffic down to 446. We close down Lisbon 
Street and put all the traffic on a road that’s built to handle it and that’s 224.  It’s been successful. We 
keep a lot of the traffic outside of the city.  Fortunately, we didn’t have too many incidents that were 
significant within the Fairgrounds.  We contribute a lot of that to the planning of Judge Hunter who is 
one of the directors in charge of security and his crew. A lot of proactive planning and their approach 
was just fantastic.  Sheriff Green and his deputy’s flooded the Fairground and two drones up in the air.  
They did a fantastic job.  For us, traffic moved very well.  At times there is gridlock. That’s always going 
to be the case. We’re not going to get around that.  We try to keep people moving as fast as we can.  I’m 
going to put a notch on this years fair as a success.  Again, thank all of our officers, some of them worked 
16-hour days to make it happen.  They did a fantastic job.  During the Canfield Fair, over the holiday 
weekend, we dealt with a situation t 71 Hilltop.  Some of you are familiar with it; whether it be social 
media or just the media. We’ve been dealing with it with zoning issues, amongst other things.  Recently, 
the house was sold by way of Sheriff’s Auction.  When the new owner went to the house, they asked 
one of our officers to get them in the house and what they found was beyond deplorable conditions. 
Several deceased animals.  Since, we turned the case over to the Animal Charities of Ohio, the humane 
agents are their enforcement. Officially, what they reported to us, 20 deceased cats, and at least 1 
deceased dog. The new owner is working together with the health department and Animal Charities of 
Ohio to do everything they can to remedy the problem. Demolition is not out of the question.  As far as 
any criminal charges for the animals, it’s not out of the question.  Animal Charities of Ohio is working on 
that.  They will keep us up to date. They would be the enforcement agency in this case.  We taped off 
the area. Nobody is permitted in the area. We’ll trespass them if need be.  They’re doing everything they 
can to handle the problem. That’s really all I have to give on that.  Anything else would be rumor or 
speculation.  That’s it for my report.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: Thank you.   
 
MR. DRAGISH: I want to say thanks. It felt good with our guys working the streets.  I felt like it’s our 
community.  To me, it just felt more comfortable knowing that our guys were there protecting the city.  
Kudos to everybody that was there any working, they did a great job.   
 
MRS. OLIVER: Last but not least, Atty. Fortunato.  
 
ATTY. FORTUNATO:  I really don’t have a report tonight but I’m happy to explain these Ordinances as we 
get to them.   
 
MRS. OLIVER: Thank you.   
 
MRS. OLIVER: Council any questions on any of these reports?   
 
MR. TIECHE: Chief, the drones, those were Sheriff’s Department’s drones? 
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: Yes.   
 
MR. TIECHE: I saw a couple of them and I thought, who has the authority to be using those.   
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: They had two drones up. They actually tried something new this year, they were able 
to keep a drone up in the air at all times, it didn’t need to come down to replace a battery.  It was up in 
the air at all times.  I would hear over the radio where a fight was and it would fly right over there.   



5 
 

 
MR. TIECHE: Did we have a drone flying over the city building a day or two?  
 
CHIEF OF POLICE:  It was last Monday or Tuesday.   
 
MR. D’APOLITO: Right before the Fair started we did. 
 
MR. TIECHE: My dog noticed it.   
 
MR. D’APOLITO: It was amazing what it could pick up.   
 
MR. NEFF: Was that an evaluation for the PD? 
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: The one that was up, we had to decide on whether or not we were going to buy that 
one or another one. We decided to go with the one that was here.  The latest, greatest technology and it 
was covered by the grant that we received.   
 
MR. TIECHE: How clear are the photos that you get from those? 
 
CHIEF OF POLICE:  Extremely.  It was just high enough over the police department to be able to shoot 
into the Fairgrounds.  We zoomed into a concession stand.  It’s unbelievable.  
 
MR. D’APOLITO: The more you zoom in, the more it gets distorted.  But it’s still really good.  You could 
pick out a person at the Fairgrounds right above this building.  They could zoom in on a person.  It’s 
really impressive.   
 
MRS. OLIVER: Any other questions Council? Hearing none. Questions from residents?  
 
BILL ABRAMSKI:  Bill Abramski, I live at 127 Talsman, Unit 2.  My wife and I are here.  We’ve been here a 
couple of years. 
 
MRS. OLIVER: I have a question. We’re asking if there are any questions on the reports that we just 
heard.  After the reports, then we’re going to go to the people on the list.  Is your question on the 
reports? 
 
BILL ABRAMSKI: There are two questions.  Madam, were you talking about the income tax?   
 
FINANCE DIRECTOR: Property taxes.   
 
BILL ABRAMSKI: What was being put into the General Fund? 
 
FINANCE DIRECTOR:  The City gets 3 Mills and city council can tell the county how we want to receive 
that money next year.  We pass this every year for the coming year. Next year, when they send it to me, 
those are the Funds that I have to put it into.  We’ve been allocating 1 Mill to the General Fund and 2 
Mills to the Street CM&R Fund. We use that for paving.   
 
BILL ABRAMSKI: the 1 Mill that goes into the General Fund that is for Canfield Proper?  
 



6 
 

FINANCE DIRECTOR: Yes.   
 
BILL ABRAMSKI: Do you have any idea what that was last year. Ballpark figure. 
 
FINANCE DIRECTOR:  How much money?  About $275,000 to $280,000.   
 
BILL ABRAMSKI: Sir, in the white shirt.  You were talking about spraying of the street on some new 
roads. Could you explain, is that going to be used for the winter time or some kind of treatment that is 
going to harden up? 
 
MR. D’APOLITO: It’s a new product. We’ve never used it before in the city.  I don’t know any local 
communities that have yet.  Manor Hill is kind of a test run. It’s a relatively newer paved road.  
Supposedly, it is supposed to recompress the pavement and strengthen it and give us an additional 5 
years before we’d have to pave it.   
 
BILL ABRAMSKI: Where are these gentlemen from? 
 
MR. D’APOLITO:  I apologize. I know it but I don’t know it off the top of my head.   
 
BILL ABRAMSKI: I was wondering.  
 
MR. D’APOLITO: It’s nobody local.  It’s not a local company at all.  
 
BILL ABRAMSKI: The State of Ohio. Thank you, very much.   
 
MRS. OLIVER: Mr. Morvay, you had a question. 
 
MR. MORVAY:  John Morvay, 7 Willow Way. We put Kevlar one year in a couple of streets, did that ever 
make a difference? 
 
PUBLIC WORKS SUPERINTENDENT: It did not.  
 
MR. MORVAY: Just recently, we had thousands of strange people through our city, without incident. 
Everybody did a great job.  Great representation to our great City of Canfield.  Mrs. Oliver, the Vindicator 
asked for nominations for firefighters that did an outstanding job.  This is the time of year that they do 
that.  It’s been in the newspaper. When I was on the board, I always tried to recommend somebody.  
You have to do a little write up. I know our Fire District guys.  I know how good they are.   
 
MRS. OLIVER: I agree.  
 
MR. MORVAY: I hope you would research that and nominate somebody.   
 
MRS. OLIVER: I’m thinking of somebody right now.  
 
MR. MORVAY: I can give you a couple names.   
 
MRS. OLIVER: I would appreciate that. Thank you, so much.  Any other questions on the reports that 
you’ve just heard?  Hearing none.     



7 
 

 
  Under RECOGNITION OF PERSONS DESIRING TO APPEAR BEFORE COUNCIL: 
 
JOHN MORVAY: John Morvay, 7 Willow Way.  I really don’t have anything to speak about. I would ask in 
general, the morale of the city workers, the direction that we’re going, have we found anything that is 
suitable out at Red Gate, just those types of questions. Maybe, where we’re going, how we’re headed. 
The other thing, I’m going to add this, then I’ll sit down and shut-up. We hired this guys 2 years ago, Mr. 
D’Apolito. He’s doing a great job. We’re getting some continuity because he’s been here for a couple of 
years.  He has one year left in his contract.  I would encourage council to take some action if you think 
he’s been doing a great job. Maybe renew his contract, give him a little bit longer, so that we can 
continue that continuity that he’s established.   
 
MRS. OLIVER: For those of you that don’t know, Mr. Morvay served 16 years on our council. He just 
came off of council 2 years ago for being termed out.  Thank you, Mr. Morvay.  
 
MIKE BUNDY:  Thank you. I’m a resident of Talsman Drive and I’ve been a resident for 25 years on 
Talsman.  I sent a letter to the city in February that was precipitated from an article that was in the 
Vindicator about the amount of traffic on Route 11; which is right in my backyard.  The volume of noise 
on that highway is horrendous.  I was active and everybody on the street worked diligently in 2019 and 
2017 to secure a wall to be built on the highway; which we were denied because the condo’s were built 
after the highway was done.  We tried to appeal that because they have increased the size of that exit 
ramp a number of times in my 25 years that I’ve lived here.  The volume of traffic moving around there 
is significantly higher than it was 25 years ago. So, the gentleman who let me have his spot will be 
talking to you about a signage request for “No Jake Brake” but I did send a letter to the city in February 
from this newspaper article requesting some help from the city with regard to getting signs put up with 
regard to “No Jake Brake”. If we can’t get anything else with regard to a wall. We need some relief from 
the noise level. I would also encourage the city to perhaps talk to the State Patrol in picking up their 
presence at the onramps because it sounds like I’m in the Indianapolis 500, the onset of the race, as 
these cars are coming and just going horrendously fast, very high volume of noise from these cars. As 
heavy taxpayers in the city, we ask for your help in getting us some kind of relief.  This will be explained 
more later. I’m sorry, I promised my wife I’d be home. We have dinner guests coming.  I will be in big 
trouble If I’m not there soon.  I appreciate your attention to the matter.  Thank you, for letting me 
address you.   
 
MR. D’APOLITO: Just so you have a little background as the folks come and take the microphone. I am in 
receipt of the letter. I’ve had conversations probably everyone here.  The dilemma is the route 11 exit 
ramp is in the township.  It’s run by ODOT.  It’s not in the City. The City doesn’t have any jurisdiction.  
We don’t’ have any ownership. We don’t have any legal.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: I understand they had a meeting at the Township Building about it.  
 
MR. D’APOLITO: These folks went and met with the township and I don’t think they were satisfied with 
the response from the township.  I told Eve, I doubt they’ll be very receptive to city residents.  Anyway, 
with that in mind, as the people approach, I want you to know that I have addressed this. I’ve talked to 
them and the dilemma is, it’s all in the township and it’s all managed and controlled by ODOT.   
 
UNIDENTIFIED MAN: But the residents are in the city, sir.   
 



8 
 

MR. D’APOLITO: I’m well aware. I’m on Talsman a lot.  I’m there all the time. I hear everything that you 
hear. Everything they’re saying is the absolute truth. The Indianapolis 500 is a great example.  It’s like a 
race course at times. It’s very loud.   
 
MIKE BUNDY:  Our association has built a massive hill that his heavily landscaped with very tall pine 
trees. We’ve done what we can to try to mitigate the noise.  It’s just not enough for the volume of traffic 
and the noise level.   
 
MRS. OLIVER: I sympathize with what you’re saying and a very good friend of mine is in this room who 
lives there and they’ve spoken to me about that as well.  I understand what Mr. D’Apolito is saying, we 
can’t do anything on the township property or the state. We’re the city.  I believe that’s what he’s trying 
to explain, that ties our hands.   
 
MIKE BUNDY: But the township doesn’t want to do anything either.  I have to run but thank you very 
much.   
 
MRS. OLIVER: Next is Dave Pinney. 
 
DAVE PINNEY: “P” as in perfect. It’s not quite true.  Dave Pinney, my wife Shirley Pinney, 167 Talsman 
Drive, Unit 1.  I sent the information that I have to Mr. D’Apolito.  This is really a quality of life issue for 
the residents of the City of Canfield.  The Township was really (inaudible) to do something to help us but 
they probably don’t want to spend that much money, it’s $1,850.00 for the 6 signs and ODOT will install 
them.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: Can I ask you a question?  If it’s the Township’s responsibility, then why aren’t they doing 
it?  My question is this, if it’s their responsibility, which it is on their property, they should be the ones to 
do it.  I don’t understand how they can say, they don’t want to help. They don’t want to spend that 
money. That’s not a lot of money in the grand scheme of things for something that they should be taking 
care of.   
 
MR. DRAGISH: They don’t want to help city residents.  
 
DAVE PINNEY: This is a quality of life issue and I think the city could work as a team with the township 
and perhaps help with the cost of the signs. You won’t be installing the signs, ODOT will be installing 
them.  I was hoping the township would go through all the paperwork and get it done if you could help 
pay for the signs. We need 6 signs, 48X60 at the start of the zones and a 48X30. 
 
MRS. OLIVER: How much was the total of the 6 signs? 
 
DAVE PINNEY:  The total is $1,850.00; which is not really a lot of money. The ODOT will provide the 
hardware, the poles and the installation.  That’s probably going to be a little expensive but ODOT will 
cover that. Initially, they weren’t but we got that.  Traci actually did that.  Traci DeCapua, the township 
person. If the city could do something, she would be the contact person.  I suggest that the signs be ¾ of 
a mile before and after 224, north and south because that about where 11 crosses over the turnpike. 
That would be a good place to place the signs.  There isn’t as much northbound truck traffic as we do 
southbound.  A lot of traffic comes into Canfield comes from the north.  Not a whole lot comes from the 
south.  So, the south people aren’t bothered with it as much as we are.  Another thing is, they are a little 
further away because the exit goes off and makes that right turn the noise is a little further away from 



9 
 

the homes.  There are township people too, that would like it. We’re going to try to get some people 
from the township at the next meeting.  They didn’t even know we were doing this.  I would hope that 
the city and the township could work as a team to assist the residents and make the quality of our life a 
little better.  In the middle of the night sometimes, it sounds like M50 machine guns some of the trucks 
have very loud, rat-a-tat, brakes.  There is a new brake out that sounds like a jet engine.  They’re coming 
out with different systems. It used to be just a Jake Brake. Now they’ve got automatic transmissions, 
that the truckers can automatically throw this thing in. Before you had to go through all kinds of 
downshifting to do this but now with the modern trucks, they can throw this brake with no problem at 
all.  The reason they do it is to save their brakes. Brakes are expensive and difficult to change. I don’t 
blame them for using them. But I also believe the truckers would respect the signs.  I know that you 
don’t want to spend money on signs that aren’t actually placed on your property but you have to realize 
they’re for our benefit.   
 
MRS. OLIVER: Thank you.  
 
DAVE PINNEY: I could say more but I think I’ve covered what is really important.   
 
MRS. OLIVER: I appreciate that.  
 
DAVE PINNEY: If you could come up with a person to work as a team person with Traci at Canfield 
Township, I think you could work out the details and get this done. They’re more than willing to help.  
 
MR. TIECHE: Question. Are you saying that you’ve gone to ODOT and ODOT will allow the signs to go on 
Route 11? 
 
DAVE PINNEY: Yes.   
 
MR. TIECHE: As long as, they are not paying for them? 
 
DAVE PINNEY: The state law is, only the township can request those signs.  Even if it was in the city, only 
a township could request those signs, that’s the way the law is written. I gave a copy of the law to Mr. 
Neff and Mr. D’Apolito.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: What he’s saying is, ODOT said they will install the signs.  They just won’t pay for the signs.  
 
DAVE PINNEY: Initially, they wanted us to pay for the poles; which was another $852.00.  But Traci at the 
township talked to them and got that taken off.  All we have to do is pay for the signs.  They’ll put in the 
Resolutions and everything. A minor problem is, they probably can’t accept money from the city, the city 
would have to pay directly for the signs.  I don’t know if that’s true but you and Traci could figure that 
out.  The way it would have to be is the city would have to write a check for the signs to ODOT and then 
the township would do the rest.  
 
MR. NEFF: I have a question. Is the noise from the Jake Brake coming from the exit ramp? 
 
DAVE PINNEY: Mostly, before the exit ramp because when they slow down to get to the exit ramps. 
They don’t want to use their brakes, so they put them on maybe a ½ mile before the exit. Then they kind 
of throttle it until they get it down to the speed they want.  Sometimes they use them all the way 
through the exit ramp.  That is where this gentleman is really affected because he’s right there; which is 



10 
 

now closer to his house because they keep widening it.  I do agree, the trucks are nothing like they were 
30 years ago.  They’re now pulling 2 or 3 trailers. They got 1000 horse power engines in them.  It’s a 
different world than when that road was built.  Any other questions? 
 
MR. TIECHE: I have a question to the Finance Director.  If we are interested in doing that, can we expend 
that money for something that is not in the city limits?   
 
MR. D’APOLITO: That’s a legal question.  
 
FINANCE DIRECTOR: I would have to research that.   
 
MR. D’APOLITO: We were discussing that. The other issue is, I’m looking at what you presented. The 
township or the county commissioners, I don’t know if you’ve contacted them but they have to pass a 
Resolution to make it a non-braking area.  Putting up a sign isn’t enough. You have to declare it. It has to 
be restricted first by a legal entity.  
 
MR. TIECHE: But we don’t have the authority to do that? 
 
MR. D’APOLITO: We do not.  But the County Commissioners might be another avenue.   
 
DAVE PINNEY: That’s very difficult. We’re local people here.   
 
MR. D’APOLITO: What you presented to me says, those are the only two options.   
 
DAVE PINNEY: This option, I think would be much quicker and more easily done. That’s my opinion.   
 
MRS. OLIVER: Thank you.  
 
DAVE PINNEY: Thank you.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: David Tucci. 
 
DAVID TUCCI: David Tucci, I live at 209 E. Main Street.  Mr. Thorn informed me that I should come to this 
meeting, so I can get a permit tomorrow to add to my utility barn, so I could put my snowblower and 
lawn mower in it.   
 
ATTY. FORTUNATO: That’s on your agenda tonight.   
 
MR. TUCCI: I’m out of step? 
 
ATTY FORTUNATO: No, you’re fine.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: We’ll be getting to it. Thank you.  Next is Eve Christopher. 
 
EVE CHRISTOPHER:  Eve Christopher, 147 Talsman, Unit 1. Back in 2019, I decided we needed a wall for 
the reasons we discussed tonight.  I went to Rulli, I sent him a letter.  That’s where I learned that 
because the condos were built after the freeway was there, that it was out of the question to have a 
wall. My argument back to him that although the freeway was there, and the condos knew that and still 



11 
 

built, it wasn’t a 4-lane freeway.  It was just a 2-lane quiet freeway.  Now, it’s like an airport and blown 
out of proportion.  At any rate, Rulli got back and said, he’s sticking to the fact that the freeway was 
there first and there will be no wall.  So, I let that go. Then, Mike Bundy, who left earlier and I, met with 
ODOT a few months ago and that’s what started all this up again.  I think his name was Dexter, I’m not 
sure, it’s in my phone.  When I met with ODOT and Mike Bundy, ODOT suggested we get the signage. He 
said, give up the idea of ever having a wall.  So, we went to the township because it’s located in the 
township. The township went to the Commissioners and the Commissioners weren’t very interested in 
picking up that. But, we’re city residents, although that piece of property where the signage would be is 
in the township, we’re city.  That’s why we’re here tonight.  We can work with the city and the township 
and ODOT, who is probably the best one that I spoke to.  Rulli completely shut the door.  ODOT said, this 
is easy. This is something you can do.  That’s why we started it up again. That’s why we’re here tonight.  
If we can get the city to work with the township and maybe have a meeting with the commissioners, it’s 
not such an expensive item for anybody sharing the cost between the township and the city. It would be 
such a benefit to these elderly people who live in my neighborhood including myself. I’m an early to bed 
kind of person and the truckers are not.  I can’t go to our representatives and I can’t go to the township.  
I do live in the city and I do pay those taxes we talked about. We’re asking for your help.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: I understand what you’re asking. I understand what everybody is asking.  From what I 
understand is Mr. Fortunato and Mr. D’Apolito will have to do the research to find out how that works. 
If we’re able to do that. It’s because, unfortunately, that property belongs to the township and it doesn’t 
belong to us.  I completely understand that.  Once they do their research. I appreciate that.   
 
EVE CHRISTOPHER: As we’re digging deeper, it’s just tonight that I learned that the Commissioners have 
to put forth a Resolution.  That is step one. I would have been calling Carol up.   
 
ATTY. FORTUNATO: I’ll get the research done in the next couple of weeks.   
 
MRS. OLIVER: Trust me, Mr. Fortunato will absolutely do that.   
 
MR. TIECHE: A question or clarification. The land that we’re talking about is in the township but isn’t it 
owned by ODOT?  
 
ATTY FORTUNATO: Yes.  
 
EVE CHRISTOPHER: They were the one’s who really started this with me and Mike Bundy.  So, they’re 
onboard.   
 
MRS. OLIVER: Thank you.  Next is Mr. Schaldone.  
 
MR. SCHALDONE: I’m good.  They presented it well.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: Would anyone else like to speak before council?  Hearing none.  
 
MR. NEFF: Can I make a comment?  We have the same problem on 224.  Being a long time resident, we 
used to have “No Jake Brake” signs on 224. I don’t know whether, Mr. Tucci, you live on 224, we get the 
same thing of trucks seeing they’re hitting a light and it is extremely loud.  It would be great if sometime 
in the future we could look at getting signs back up. The other thing, the caveat is, just putting a sign up 
doesn’t make the truckers obey it.  We’ll have to have cooperation from the Highway Patrol and PD.  



12 
 

 
MR. D’APOLITO: Great point. A sign alone might not change behavior.   
 
MR. NEFF: AI, maybe one day, technology will be controlling these trucks and they will automatically not 
make as much noise.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: Any other questions from council?  Hearing none.  
 
  Under OLD BUSINESS: 
 
ITEM A:  An Ordinance Amending the Sign Regulations of the City of Canfield.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: As per the provisions of Section 4.05 of the Charter of the City of Canfield, I move that 
Council dispense with the requirement of a full reading of the proposed Ordinance and authorize 
reading by title only.  
 
MR. DRAGISH: Second.  
 
   ROLL CALL ON MOTION:   5 Votes-Yes   
         0 Votes-No   
         Motion passes. 
 
MR. DRAGISH: Madam President, I have an Ordinance Amending the Sign Regulations of the City of 
Canfield.  I move for passage.  
 
MR. NEFF: Second.  
 
   ROLL CALL ON ORDINANCE:    5 Votes-Yes   
         0 Votes-No   
         Ordinance passes.  
         Ordinance 2025-23. 
 
  Under NEW BUSINESS: 
 
ITEM A:  An Ordinance Authorizing the Expansion of a Non-Conforming Use at 209 E. Main Street by 
David Tucci.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: As per the provisions of Section 4.05 of the Charter of the City of Canfield, I move that 
Council dispense with the requirement of two readings of the proposed Ordinance and authorize 
adoption of the same upon its first reading.   
 
MR. GRAHAM: Second.  
 
   ROLL CALL ON MOTION:   5 Votes-Yes   
         0 Votes-No   
         Motion passes. 
 



13 
 

MRS. OLIVER: As per the provisions of Section 4.05 of the Charter of the City of Canfield, I move that 
Council dispense with the requirement of a full reading of the proposed Ordinance and authorize 
reading by title only.  
 
MR. DRAGISH: Second.  
 
   ROLL CALL ON MOTION:    5 Votes-Yes  
          0 Votes-No  
          Motion passes. 
 
MR. GRAHAM: Madam President, I have an Ordinance Authorizing the Expansion of a Non-Conforming 
Use at 209 E. Main Street by David Tucci. I move for passage.  
 
MR. NEFF: Second.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: Mr. Fortunato, would you like to expand on Letter A? 
 
ATTY. FORTUNATO: Sure.  We have an unusual ordinance, I was explaining to the city manager, 
regarding non-conforming uses.  Most communities try to phase out non-conformities.  They don’t allow 
expansions or additions.  The idea is, they don’t conform with the zoning code so they, over time 
dwindle away.  Because we have so many older and historical areas in town, I think Mr. Tieche was city 
manager at the time, we developed an Ordinance where we created a process pursuant to which 
somebody could expand or enlarge a non-conforming use.  That’s what you have before us today.  The 
process is Planning & Zoning makes a recommendation to council and then council either votes to 
approve or disapprove the expansion of the non-conformity.  A non-conformity can be something of a 
size of a garage or where an accessory building might sit in terms of a setback requirement.  In this case, 
it’s a request by Mr. Tucci to expand an accessory building. Again, it’s a usual ordinance. There aren’t 
many communities that allow this. We thought it was a good idea based on some of the older historical 
areas. So, the process is what you’re seeing tonight.   
 
MRS. OLIVER: So, Mr. Thorn has already reviewed this.  
 
ZONING INSPECTOR: Design Review approved it.  Planning & Zoning approved it.  It just has to come 
before you.  The situation is, he has a garage that is detached from the home and he has a shed. So, 
being he has both of those, it’s non-conforming.  Therefore, he has to come before you to expand his 
shed.   
 
MR. TIECHE: I have a question.  Wouldn’t we normally amend the Ordinance before we had the 
approvals going to the Design Committee and that kind of thing? 
 
ATTY. FORTUNATO: No, our process is exactly what’s happened here.  You’re the last stop.  
 
MR. TIECHE: Okay.  
 
MR. MORVAY: John Morvay, 7 Willow Way.  So, did it have to go through the historical? 
 
ATTY. FORTUNATO: It went to Design Review.   
 



14 
 

MRS. OLIVER: Any other questions from Council? Hearing none.  
 
   ROLL CALL ON ORDINANCE:    5 Votes-Yes   
         0 Votes-No   
         Ordinance passes  
         Ordinance 2025-24. 
 
ITEM B:  An Ordinance Amending Chapter 919 of Canfield Codie Title” Rights of Way Ordinance” 
 
MRS. OLIVER: As per the provisions of Section 4.05 of the Charter of the City of Canfield, I move that 
Council dispense with the requirement of two readings of the proposed Ordinance and authorize 
adoption of the same upon its first reading.   
 
MR. DRAGISH: Second.  
 
   ROLL CALL ON MOTION:   5 Votes-Yes   
         0 Votes-No   
         Motion passes. 
 
MRS. OLIVER: As per the provisions of Section 4.05 of the Charter of the City of Canfield, I move that 
Council dispense with the requirement of a full reading of the proposed Ordinance and authorize 
reading by title only.  
 
MR. GRAHAM: Second.  
 
   ROLL CALL ON MOTION:   5 Vote-Yes   
         0 Votes-No   
         Motion passes. 
 
MR. TIECHE: Madam President, I have an Ordinance Amending Chapter 919 of Canfield Code Title 
“Rights of Way Ordinance”.  I move for passage.  
 
MR. NEFF: Second.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: Mr. Fortunato.  
 
ATTY. FORTUNATO:  I’ll give you a summary. We have a pretty good right of way ordinance in place 
already. Do to the recent proliferation of utility work in the right of way because of fiber optic and other 
things that utility providers want to install we took a hard look over our ordinance over the past few 
months and we really expanded it and tightened it up in a lot of ways, including what plans need to be 
submitted, what bonding requirements are when people tear apart streets or work in the right of ways, 
we have the engineer involved now and inspecting the applications. We’re requiring contractors to 
register before any work is done.  Some of the items we modified require everything to be underground. 
We’ve given the city manager a lot of authority relative to approving plans, setting permit fees, based on 
the amount of time it’s going to take for the city engineer to review an applicants request, as well as the 
bonding requirements. I’m really with this Ordinance. John, Steve, Tyler and the CM have been a great 
help. We’ve all had our hands in this over the past few months.  We took a good hard look at what other 



15 
 

communities were doing and picked the best of those.  I think you got a really good ordinance in front of 
you.  
 
MR. D’APOLITO: This came from when the fiber companies were coming in and tearing up people’s 
yards and then not coming back.  That’s what we’re trying to get ahead of here. We have the bond in 
place, they don’t come back, we can use the bond to get those done.   
 
MRS. OLIVER: Any questions from Council? Hearing none. Residents? Hearing none.  
 
   ROLL CALL ON ORDINANCE:   5 Votes-Yes   
         0 Votes-No   
         Ordinance passes  
         Ordinance 2025-25. 
 
ITEM C:  An Ordinance Authorizing the City Manager to Signa A Contract for Health Services with the 
Mahoning County General Health District for the City of Canfield.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: As per the provisions of Section 4.05 of the Charter of the City of Canfield, I move that 
Council dispense with the requirement of two readings of the proposed Ordinance and authorize 
adoption of the same upon its first reading.   
 
MR. DRAGISH: Second.  
 
   ROLL CALL ON MOTION:   5 Votes-Yes   
         0 Votes-No   
         Motion passes. 
 
MRS. OLIVER: As per the provisions of Section 4.05 of the Charter of the City of Canfield, I move that 
Council dispense with the requirement of a full reading of the proposed Ordinance and authorize 
reading by title only.  
 
MR. TIECHE: Second.  
 
   ROLL CALL ON MOTION:   5 Votes-Yes   
         0 Votes-No   
         Motion passes. 
 
MR. NEFF: Madam President, I have an Ordinance Authorizing the City Manager to Sign a Contract for 
Health Services with the Mahoning County General Health District for the City of Canfield. I move for 
passage.  
 
MR. TIECHE: Second.  
 
ATTY. FORTUNATO: In essence, the Mahoning County is our Health Department. We contract with the 
Mahoning County Board of Health to provide services on an as needed basis. You heard about it today 
with 71 Hilltop.  So, we don’t have a health department but we don’t need a health department because 
we contract with Mahoning County Board of Health to provide those services to the city. That’s what 
this is.   



16 
 

 
MR. D’APOLITO: The current contract expires at the end of the year.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: Is it annual?  
 
MR. D’APOLITO: Three years.   
 
MRS. OLIVER: Any questions from Council?  Hearing none. Any questions from residents? Hearing none.  
 
   ROLL CALL ON ORDINANCE:   5 Votes-Yes   
         0 Votes-No   
         Ordinance passes.  
         Ordinance 2025-26. 
 
ITEM D: A Resolution Accepting the Amounts and Rates as Determined by the Budget Commission and 
Authorizing the Necessary Tax Levies and Certifying them to the County Auditor.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: As per the provisions of Section 4.05 of the Charter of the City of Canfield, I move that 
Council dispense with the requirement of two readings of the proposed Resolution and authorize 
adoption of the same upon its first reading.   
 
MR. GRAHAM: Second.  
 
   ROLL CALL ON MOTION:   5 Votes-Yes   
         0 Votes-No   
         Motion passes. 
 
MRS. OLIVER: As per the provisions of Section 4.05 of the Charter of the City of Canfield, I move that 
Council dispense with the requirement of a full reading of the proposed Resolution and authorize 
reading by title only.  
 
MR. DRAGISH: Second.  
 
   ROLL CALL ON MOTION:   5 Votes-Yes   
         0 Votes-No   
         Motion passes. 
 
MR. DRAIGSH: I have a Resolution Accepting the Amounts and Rates as Determined by the Budget 
Commission and Authorizing the Necessary Tax Levies and Certifying them to the County Auditor. I move 
for passage.  
 
MR. TIECHE: Second.  
 
   ROLL CALL ON RESOLUTION:   5 Votes-Yes   
         0 Votes-No   
         Resolution passes.  
         Resolution 2025-05. 
 



17 
 

ITEM E:  A Resolution of the Council of the City of Canfield, Ohio Authorizing the Mahoning County 
Auditor’s Office to Assess Properties within the City of Canfield.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: As per the provisions of Section 4.05 of the Charter of the City of Canfield, I move that 
Council dispense with the requirement of two readings of the proposed Resolution and authorize 
adoption of the same upon its first reading.   
 
MR. GRAHAM: Second 
 
   ROLL CALL ON MOTION:   5 Votes-Yes   
         0 Votes-No   
         Motion passes. 
 
MRS. OLIVER: As per the provisions of Section 4.05 of the Charter of the City of Canfield, I move that 
Council dispense with the requirement of a full reading of the proposed Resolution and authorize 
reading by title only.  
 
MR. DRAGISH:  Second. 
 
   ROLL CALL ON MOTION:   5 Votes-Yes   
         0 Votes-No   
         Motion passes. 
 
MR. GRAHAM:  Madam President, I have A Resolution of the Council of the City of Canfield, Ohio 
Authorizing the Mahoning County Auditor’s Office to Assess Properties within the City of Canfield. I 
move for passage.  
 
MR. NEFF: Second.  
 
   ROLL CALL ON RESOLUTION:   5 Votes-Yes   
         0 Votes-No   
         Resolution passes.  
         Resolution 2025-06. 
 
  Under COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 
MRS. OLIVER: Any Council Comments before we close the meeting? 
 
MR. NEFF: I’d like to make a motion to adjourn into Executive Session to Ohio Revised Code Section 
121.22 G (2) to consider the sale of public property.  
 
MR. TIECHE: Second.  
 
   ROLL CALL ON MOTION:   5 Votes-Yes   
         0 Votes-No   
         Motion passes.  
 
Council adjourned into Executive Session at 6:37 pm. 



18 
 

 
Council reconvened from Executive Session at 7:05 pm 
 
Mr. Dragish made a motion to adjourn 
 
Mrs. Oliver seconded the motion 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:06 P.M. 
 
 
     ________________________________ 
     PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL  
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________ 
CLERK OF COUNCIL  


	Agenda
	Ordinance Replacement Pages
	Resolution WSRLA Loan
	Motion Trick or Treat
	Minutes PH
	Minutes Regular 9-3-25



